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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF GMR SEZ & PORT HOLDINGS LIMITED
==s 2 JULMNGS LIMITED

Report on the Ind AS standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

. We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of M/s. GMR
SEZ & Port Holdings Limited (the “Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at 31 March, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss,(including other comprehensive
income) the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS -
financial statements”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2020 give
the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the company as at 31°* March, 2020, its losses, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:

3. We'conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of -
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there
under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirementé and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

4, The Company’s Board. of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include
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Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements:

3.

the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The board report is expected to
be made availahie to ys after the date of this auditor's report,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
hot express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows ip
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the agsets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
Were operating effectively for enéuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fajr view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error,
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7.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements:
——=—— A0 vinancial Statements:

8.

(M)

i)

always detect a materia] misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
Or error and are considered material if| individually or in the aggregate, they could
teasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements,

A further description of oyr responsibilities for the audit of the financial Statements is as
follows:

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgm’ent and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: '
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

- obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

The risk of not detecting a materia] misstatement resulting from fraud s higher than for
one resulting from error, ag fraud may involve colusion, forgery, intentiona] omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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We are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements o, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report,
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue asa
going concern. '

(v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statemenfs,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

B. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

C. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatox_y Requirements:

10. As required by the Companfes (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in "Annexure - A"a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extend applicable. | |

I1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Losg (Including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
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Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indjan
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financia] controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the Operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our Scparate report in “Annexyre B". Our report expresses an unmodified

opinion on the. adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal
financials controls with reference to financial statements,

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report jn accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in oyr
-opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company does not have anjf pending litigations which would impéct its
financial position;

ii. The Company did not have long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were aly material foreseeable losses,

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transforred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.,

PLACE: BANGALORE FOR GIRISH MURTHY & KUMAR

Chartered Accountants
DATE: Ich,May, 2020
UDIN: 20085 745AAAABL8283

Girish Rao B

Partner.
Membetship No: 085745
FRN No.0009348
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“’Annexure A”to the Independent Auditors’ Report referred to in clause 1 of paragraph
on the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date
to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020¢:

Re:GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited

1. a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars inciuding
Quantitative details and situation of Fixed Assets,

b. The fixed assets have been physically verified during the year by the management and
there were no materiaj discrepancies between the book records and the physical fixed
assets.

C. According to the information and ‘explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of the immovable properties are
held in the name of the Company.

Il The activities of the company did not involve purchase of any inventory or sale of goods
during the year, and accordingly paragraph 3 (i) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company. :

Companies Act,2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the company has
not granted any loan, made any investments, gave any guarantee or provided security in
connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person in contravention of section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act,2013.

VI, According to the information and explanation given to us the Central Government has
Not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 for the activities carried out by the Company, and hence this clause is not
applicable.

VII. a According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us there are no disputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, income tax, Goods and service tax; professional tax Employees state
insurance and Cess as at 3 1st March 2020.
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VII.

iX.

XL

XIr.

XIIL

XIv.

XV.

XVI.

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to
a financial institution, bank, Government or dues to debenture holders and did not have
any outstanding dues in respect of financial institutions and debenture holders during
the year. The funds raised by way of term loan were applied for the purpose for which
it was raised.

The company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer(Including debt instrument) or has taken term loans during the year, Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (ix) of the order is not applicable,

During the course of examination of the books and records of the company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we have not come across any instance of
fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or employees of the company
“during the year. '

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the
company examined by us the Company has not paid or provided any managerial
Remuneration. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) of the order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the order is not
applicable. '

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, we are of the opinion that all the transaction with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act.2013 and
the details of the transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements
as per applicable accounting Standards.

-According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, we are of the opinion that the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly debentures
during the year under review.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, we are of the opinion that that the Company has not entered
into any non cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, we are of the opinion that that the Company is not required
to be registered under Section 45 -IA of the Reserve Bank of India.

PLACE: BANGALORE : FOR GIRISH MURTHY & KUMAR

DATE:19th, May, 2020

UDIN: 20085745AAAABL8283

Membership No: 085745
FRN No: (009348
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Annexure B to Auditors’ Report of even date
Report on the Internal Controls on Financial Controls under clause (D) of sub-section (3)
of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

. Re:GMRSEZ & Port Holdings Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GMR SEZ & Port
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
trols based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
_preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtajn audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial _
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
‘reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
Statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

- Opinion

PLACE: BANGALORE FOR GIRISH MURTHY &KUMAR
Chartered Accountants

DATE:19th, May 2020
UDIN: 20085745AAAAB§.8283

Girish Rao B
Partner. '
Membership No: 08574
FRN No.0009348

4502, High Point IV, 45, Palace Road, Bangalore - 560 001.Ph.223 81 473




GIRISH
MURTHY & KUMAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor's Report on Annual Financial Information of GMR SEZ &
Portholdings Limited,

To
The Board of Directors of
GMR SEZ & Portholdings Limited

Opinien

1.

3.

We have audited the accompanying statement of annual financial information (‘the Statement’) of GMR
SEZ & Portholdings Limited. (‘the Company") for the year ended 31 March 2020 prepared by the
Company’s management to assist the management of the Holding Company in the preparation of its
consolidated financial resyits for the year ended 31 March 2020 pursuant to the requirements of SEB|
circular no. CIR/CFD/CMD1/44/2019 dated 29 March 2019 read with Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) (‘Listing Regulations’),
including relevant circulars issued by the SEB! from time to time. :

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Statement:

(1) presents financial results in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the Listing
Regulations: and

(i) gives a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable Indian Accounting Standards {'Ind AS")
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with relevant rules issued
thereunder, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the net profit/ loss after
tax and other comprehensive income and other financial information of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2020, :

Basis for Opim'_on

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statement section of our report. We are independent of the Company
“in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘the
ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
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relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a true and fair view and is
free from materiai misstatement, whether due to fravd or error.

5. In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern, and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

6. The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statement

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 14310} of the

error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Statement.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of materijal misstatement of the Statement, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to thoge risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such
controls,

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management, ’

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of

"disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the Statement represents the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
Scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Other Matter(s)

report is issyued soleiy for the aforementioned purpose and for the use of the group auditors, M/s
Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, in their audit of consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company, and accordingly should not be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose or
to any other Party without our prior written consent. Further, we do not accept or assume any
liability or any duty of care for any other purpose for which or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For Girish Murthy & Kumar
Firm registration number- 0009348
Chartered Accountants

-~

Bl Gifish Rao
artner
Membership no.: 85745
UDIN: 20085745AAAABM7305

Place: Bangalore
Date: 19.05.2020

4502, High point IV, 43, Palace Road. Bangalore-560 001, Ph: 223 81 473

S




GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited
(Formerly Known as GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Private Limited)
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020

ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

{b} Investment Property

{c) Financial Assets
(i) Investments - Shares
(i) Investments - others
{lif) Loans

(2) Current assets
{a) Financial Assets
{i) Investments

(ili) Loans

(iv) Others
(b} Gther current assets
I
Total Assats

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity &

(@) Equity Share capital

{b) Other Equity

LIABILITIES
{1} Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
{b) Provisions

(2) Current liabilities
(a} Financial Liabiiities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Trade Payables
- Due to micro enterprises
- Due to others
(fii) Other financial Habilities
{b) Other current liabilities
{c) Provisions

‘Total Equity and Liabilities

(a) Praperty, Plant and Equipment

(d) Non Current taxes recoverable (net of provision)

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

3 93,600 -
4 ' 1,38,92,094 1,38,92,094
5 1,03,28,76,010 1,03,30,76,010
5 1,54,16,00,647 1,54,16,00,647
5 15,72,88,0656 13,37,63,288
g 8,08,959 49,28,778
5 1,00,00,00,000 2,54,58,00,000
10 26,46,949 23,36,701
6 2,99,61,92,921 1,52,22,67,921
7 63,23,964 26,57,927
8 1,62,019 4,80,468
6,75,18,85,229 6,80,08,03,823
11 47,99,00,000 47,99,00,000
12 1,13,00,31,054 1,47,39,60,920
13 3,64,53,48,387 2,20,08,15,000
14 2,74,251 1,84,287
13 1,06,74,00,000 2,26,49,70,000

15

and small enterprises - -
20,67,023 17,34,361
16 41,83,73,849 37,05,77,195
17 84,568,596 86,44,906
14 22,070 16,664
6,75,18,85,229 6,80,08,03,833

The accompanying notes are an integral

As per our report of even date

For Girish Murthy & Kumar
FIrm Registraticn No,+ 0009345

B sh Rao
Partner
Membership no,: 85745

Place: Bangalore
Date: 19.05.2020

part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the board of directors of GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited

M. Mohan Rao

Director
DIN 02506274

NAATRIR =
Mallikarjun DVR
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Dethi
Date: 08.05.2020

Sanjay Kumar Jain
Director
DIN 07563436

Utkarsh Gupta
Company Secretary




GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited
(Formerly Known as GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020

__(Amour_lt in INR}) _

. Particulars . Noles the year ended 31 For the yeal “ended 31
' : March:2020° . ~‘March 2019
1/REVENUE _
Revenue From Operations 18 49,08,640 | 16,29,029
Other Income 19 | 2,41.65,214 | 6,90,38.725
ITotal Revenue (I) L 2.90,73,854 | 7,06,67,754 |
‘ J
II; EXPENSES |
!Emplovee Benefits Expense 20 19.74,929 18,60,570
finance Costs 23 36,42,90,74% 39,33,02,181
:Depreciation : 21 . 4,700 -
"Other Expenses | 22 ! 55,32,219 21,06,093
| Total expenses (IT} ‘ 37,18.02,597 39,72,68,844
IIT Profit before excepticnal items and tax (I-11} | -34,27,28,743 -32,66,01,090
IVJExceptionaI Items | { - -
V| Profit/(loss)} before tax (ITI-IV} ‘ -34,27,28,743 ~32,66,01,090
VI Tax expense: i
(1)|Current Tax | -
(2) |For earlier vear | | ’ 12,04,985 -
(3) Deferred Tax ! ‘
VII|Profit/{loss) for the period (V-VI) | -34,39,33,729 -32,66,01,090
! !
VIII!Other Comprehensive Income i
\A Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
!B Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss | |
|Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit pians i -3,863 -4,590
\Income tax effect : - -
IXiTota? Comprehensive income for the period (VII + VIII) | -34,39,37,592 -32,66,05,680
:(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income ! !
for the oeriocd)
XiEarnings per equity share : Face value of Rs.10 each. !
!(1) Basic : i -7.17 | -6.81
(2) Diluted - ] 717 | -6.81

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the hoard of directors of GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited

For Girish Murthy & Kumar
Firm Reqistration No. ; 0009345
Chartered Accountants

5707,

M. Mohan Rao
Director
DIN 02506274

B. Girish Rao
Partner
Membership no.: 85245

Pl T Bangalore
Date: 19.05.2020

Sanjay Kumar Jain
Director
DIN 07963436

Utkarsh Gupta
Company Secretary




GMR SEZ and Port Holdings Limited
(Formally Known as GMR SEZ and Port Holdings Pvt Ltd }
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Proceeds from borrowings

Interest paid

Tax on preference dividend paid

Net cash flow from/ {used in} in financing activities (G}

Net increasef{decraase] in cash and cash squivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash en hand
With banks- on current accaunt
- on deposit account
Tolal cash and cash equivalents (note 18)

Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs,

Cash flow from operating activities
Prafit before tax from conlinuing operations (34,27,28,743) (22,65,96,500)
Frofit hefore tax from discontinuing operations. . - -
Profit before tax (34,27.28,743) {32,65,95,500)
Neon-zash adjustment ta recancile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation/ amortization on continuing operation 4,700 -

Loss on sale of investment {net} 2,00,000 -

Pravisions no longer required wrillen back (1,250) -
Interest expanse 36,42,80,748 39,32,97,731
Inlerest income (2,37 57,736y {6,90,38,725)
Gain from sale of other investments (4,05,228) {4,68,442)
Cperating profit before worldng capital changes {23,98,508) (28,05,936}
Movements in working capital :
Inereasef (Decrease) in trade payables 333,412 {3,684 85411)
increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities {1,76,310) 6,90,49,861
Decrease / (increase) in ather current assets. 3,18,448 {77,360}
Decrease / {increase) in olher Current financials assets (242.430}
Decrease / {increase) in other Cument financial assets {36,66,037) {1,12,14,071)
Decrease / (increase) short term loans and advances - -
Increase / (Decrease) in Cther long term Liabilities - -
tncrease / (Cecrease) in Shart term provisions 89,964 43,005
increase / (Decrease} in long term provisions 8,269 778
Increase / (decrease} in shori-term provisions -
Cash generated from /used in) aperations (57,32,191) 1,65,11,857
Direct taxes paid (nel of refunds) 28,14,834 10,82,677
Nel cash flow from/ (used in) aperaling activities (A) {28,17,358) 1,75,94,534
Cash flows from investing activities
Loans and advances given {149,7449,778) {13,00,63,288)
Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP and capital advances {98,300} -
Purchase of current invesiments (net) ' 2,008,000 1,02,54,36,844
Proceeds from sale/malurity of current investments 1,54,56,00,000 (2,54,58,00,000)
Interest received 2,37 ,57736 6,90,38,725
Gain from sale of ather investments 4,065,228 4,568,442
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) 7,24,15,886 (1,55,09,19,277)
Cash flows from financing activities

27,69,63,387 1,93,86,95,000

{34,62,51,666)

(38,32.57,731}

(6,82,88,279)

1.54,53,97,259

3,10,248 (1,78,.27,474)
23,386,701 20264175
26,465,949 23,36,701
26,46,848 23,36,701
26 46,949 283,36,701

Summary of significant accounting policies
Notes:

2013,

As per our report of even date

For Ginsh Murthy & Kumar,

Firm Registration No. ; 0009345
Chartered Accountants

Fish Rao
Partner
Membership no.: 85745.

Piace: Bangalore
Date: 19.05.2020

1. The abave cashflow statement has been prepared under the 'indirect Method' as set cut in the IND AS - 7 on cashfiow statements as refarrad to

Chief Financial Officer

Far and on behalf of the beard of directors of GMR SEZ & Part Heldings Limited

et L

Sanjay Kumar Jain
Director
DIN 07963436

Utkarsh Gupta
Company Secretary

in secticn 133 of the Campanies Act,
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3. Property, plant and equipment

Amount in INR

Particulars

Office
equipment

Total

Cost

Deemed cost as at
01.04.2018

Additions

Disposals

Adjustments

As at 21.03.2019

Additions

98,300

98,300

Disposals

As at 31.03.2020

98,300

98,300

Depreciation

As at 01.04.2018

Charge for the year

Deductions

As at 31.03.2019

Charge for the vear

4,700

Deductions

As at 31.03.2020

4,700

Net block

As at 31.03.2020

93,600

As at 31.03.2019




4. Investment Property
Amounts in INR

: Particulars Total
Qpening balance at ¥ April 2018 1,38,92,0594.00
Additions (subsequent expenditure) -
Closing balance at 31 March 2019 1,38,92,094.00
Additions (subseguent expenditure) -
Closing balance at 31st March 2020 1,38,92,094.C0

Depreciation and impairment
Opening balance at 1 April 2018 -
Depreciation
Closing balance at 31 March 2019 -
Depreciation
Closing balance at 31st March 2020 . ) -

Net Block
at 31 March 2020 1,38,92,094.00
at 31 March 2019 1,38,92,094.00

For investment property existing as on 1 April 2CG15, i.e., its date of transition to Ind AS, the Company has used
Indian GAAP carrying value as deemed costs.

The Company's investment properties consist of 3.110 Acres land in Hosur, Tamilnadu and 11.725 acres land in
Gummaregula-East Godavari, Andhra Pradesh, Totally 14.835 Acres of land in India. The management has determined that
the investment properties consist of two classes of assets — office and retail — based on the nature, characteristics and risks
of each property.

As at 31st March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the fair values of the properties are INR 3,60,50,000 and INR 3,31,37,500
respectively. These valuations are based on valuations performed by KPMG India Private Limited for the period ended
December 2019 and value for the year ended march 2019 by M Chandra Prakash and Gabriel Ebenezer, B.E, F.I.V., an
accredited independent valuer. Chartered Surveyors. Management is of the view that the valuation of lands has not changed
materiaily as on 31.03.2020 and retain the value of properties as same as December 2018. A valuaticn model in accordance
with that recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee has been applied. Sales comparison method has
been considered as Valuation Technique. The valuation has been done considering the market value of the land after visiting
the site, meeting various people, making enquiries, collecting & verification of various land related data, considering the sale/
lease executed in that area in last few years, considering the acquisition plan of SIPCOT and the project development plan of
the Client in the vicinity.

The Company has no restrictions on the realisahility of its investment properties and no contractual obligations te purchase,
construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

Reconciliation of fair value
Investiment

properties
Land

Crores
3.31
0.29

Opening halance as at 1 April 2019
Fair value difference

Purchases

Closing balance as at 31 March 2020




5. Financial assets

Non-Current Investments
Amounts in INR

long Term Shert Term
31.Mar.20 ; 31.Mar.19 31.Mar.20 31.Mar.19
i i !
Investment in eauitv instruments carried at cost (unaquoted} :
Kakinada $EZ Private Limited : 42,18,12.200 42,18.12.200 : - -
42,181,220{2019:42,181,220) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Subsidiaries H : H
Kakinada SEZ Private Limited 5.75.58.810 ' 5.756.58.810 ° - -
57,558,810(2019:57.558,810) equity shares of Rs.10 each, partly paid-up Re 1 each in Subsidiarles . :
Advila Properties Private Limited 1.40,00.000 1,00,00,000 ; - -
1,000,000{2019:1,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each Fully paid-up in Subsidiaries i i ;
Aklima Properties Private Limited ! 1,00.00,000 1,00.00,000 ¢ - -
1,000.000(2019:1,000,000) equity shaves of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Subsidiaries
Amartya Properties Private Limited : 1.00.90,000 ! 1,00.00.000 ; - -
1,000,000(2019:1,000,060} equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Subsidiatics : :
Asteria Properties Private Limitad 3,00,000 i 3,00,000 | - -
30,000{2019:30,000) equity sharas of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Subsidiarics ' '
Baroui Propertics Private Limited 1.00,00,000 1,00.00.000 -
1,000.000{2019:1,000,000] equily shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Subsidtari . . H
Camelia Properties Private Limited : 1.00,00.000 1,00.00,000 - -
1,000,000(2029:1.000,000) equity shares of Rs.10 eack fully paid-up in Subsidiarics i ; .
Eila Properties Private Lintited : 1,00.00.000 1.040,00,000 - -
1,000,060(2019:1,000,800 equity shares of Rs.16 each Fully paid-up in Subsidiaries : :
Gerbera Preperties Private Limited 1,30,00,000 1.00.00.000 - -
1,000,600{2019:1,000,000} equity shares of Rs.1{} each fully paid-up in Subsidizries H . i
Lakshmipriya Propertics Private Limited 1.,00.00.000 1.00.00.000 : - -
1,000,000{2019:1.000,000) cquity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Subsidiarics H
Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited : 1.00,00.000 1,00,00,000 | . -
1,000,000(2019:1,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully pald-up in Subsidiaries . H H
Idika Propertics Private Limited : 1,00.00,000 £.00.00.000 : R -
1.060,000(2019:1,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10 cach fully paid-up in Subsidiaties : : :
Krishna Priya Properties Private Limited R 1.00.40,000 1.00.00,000 | - -
1.000,000(2019:1,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Subsidiaries : :
Nadira Properties Private Limited 1.00.06.000 ; 1.00,00,000 - -
1,000,500(2029:1,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Subsidiaries : H :
Prakalpa Properties Private Limited 1.00.00,000 1.00,00,000 - -
1,000,000{2019:1,600,600) equity shares of Rs, 30 cach fully paid-up in Subsidiaries . H i
Purnachandra Progertics Private Limited 1.00.00,000 1.00.00,000 : - -
1,000,000{261%:2,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Subsidiaries ; :
Shreydita Prapertics Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,00.000 - -
1.000,000(2019:1,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Subsidiaries i :
Sreepa Properties Private Limited 1.00.00.000 1,00.00,000 - -
1,000,000(2019:1,000,060) equity shares of Rx.10 each fully patid-up in Subsidiaries : :
Bougainvilla Properties Private Limited : 1,00,00.000 : 1.00.00.000 : - -
1,000,000(2019:1.000,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Subsidiarics : : | :
Deepesh Prapertics Private Limited 1.00,00,000 : 1.00,00,000 : E -
1.000.000{2019:1,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Substdiartes : : )
Padmapriya Properties Private Limited : 1.00.00.000 - 1.00,00,000 - -
1,000,00072019:1,000.000) equily shares of Rs. 10 each fdly paid-up in Subsidiaries ‘ X :
Larkspur Properties Private Linzited ; 1,00.00.000 ; 1.00.00.000 ; - -
1,000,000{2019:1,000,060) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Subsidiarics . H :
Pranesh Propertics Private Limited 1,00.00,000 | 1,00.00,000 - -
1,060,600 (2019:1,000,000] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Subsidiaries . ! : .
Radhapriya Properties Private Limited . 1.00.00.000 | 1,00.00,000 - -
1,600,000 (2019:1,000,000) equity shaves of Rs.19 each fully paid-up in Subsidiaries : :
Lantana Properties Private Limited 1,00.000 ; 1.00.000 - -
10,000(2015:10,0007 equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Subsidiacies : :
Dhruvi Securities Private Limited 5,000 5.000 ¢ - -
100 (2019 : 100] equity shares of Rs 10 cach fiily paid-up in Feltow Subsidiaries : ) : :
Heney Flower Estates Private Limited : 33,26.00.000 33,26,00,000 - -

4,760,000(201%: +,760,000} equity shares of Rs.10 each Tully paid-up in Subsidiaties and premium of Rs.59.87 per shares

Namitha Real Estates Private Limited 1,900,000 ; 1.00,000 ; - -
10,000 (2019 ; 10,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each Tully paid-up in Fellow Subsidiaries . . : !

Suzene Properties Private Limited : 1,00,000 1,00,000 - -
10,000 (2019 : 10.000) equity shares of R, 10 each fully patid-ugp in Fellow Subsidiaries . :

Lilliam Properties Private Limited . 1,00,000 : 1.00.000 : - -
10,000 (2019 : 10,000] equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Fellow Subsidiaries H

East Gedavari Power Distribution Comjrany Private Limited . - 2,00,000 - -
20,000 {20191 20,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Fellow Subsidiaries . : :

GMR Utilities Private Limited : 200,000 2,00,000 ; - -

10,000 (2019 : 10,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Fellaw Subsidiaties

1,03,28,76,010 | 1,03,30,76.010 | ] N




Additienal Equity Investments :

Kakinada SEZ Private Limited
Kakinada Gateway Port Limited

Unquoted Debenture Investmeants :

Kakinada Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited

Advika Properties Private Limited

Nit (2019: 60), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs, 1,000,000 {2019:1,000,000) sach
NIl {2019:32), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs, 100,000 (2019:100,000) each
Aldima Properties Private Limited

Ril (2012:30), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 (2019:1,000,000} each
Nil {2019:36), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100,000 (201%:100,000) each
Amartva Properties Private Limited

Nil (2019:64), 0% Onptionai Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 (2019:1,000,000) each
Hil (2019: 58), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs, 100,000 (2019:100,800) each
Asteria Properties Private Limited

NIl {2019:23), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs, 1,000,000 {2019:1,000,000) each
Nil \{2019:290), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs, 100,000 (2019:100.000) each
Baruni Properties Private Limited

Nil (2019:51), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 (2019:1,006,000) each
Nil {2019:24), 8% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs, 100.000 {2019:100,000} each
Camelia Properties Private Limited

Nil (2019:48), 0% Ontionai Convertible Debentures of Rs, 1,000,000 {2019:1,000,000) each
Nil (2019:61), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs, 100,000 {2019:100,000) each
Efla Properties Private Limited

Nif (2019:68), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 (2019;1,000,000) each
Nil {2019:115}, 0% Optionai Convertible Debentures of Rs, 100,000 {2019:100,000) each
Gerbera Pronerties Private Eimited

Nil {2019:53), 6% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs, 1,000,000 {2019:1,000,000) each
Nil {2019:82}, 0% Optionat Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100,008 (2019:100,000) each
Lakshmioriva Pronerties Private Limited

Nil (2019:60), 0% Optionai Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 (2019:1,000,000) each
Nil {2019:24), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100,000 (2019:100,000) each
Honevsuckle Prooerties Private Limited

Ril (2019:60), 0% Cptional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 (2015:1,000,000) each
Nil (2019:258}, 0% Optionai Convertible Debentures of Rs, 100,000 {2019;100,000) each
Idika Properties Private Limited

Nil {2019:53}, 0% Opticnal Convertible Debentures of Rs, 1,000,000 (2019:1,000,000) each
Nil (2019:36), 0% Cptional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100,000 {2019:100,000) sach
Krishna Priva Properties Private Limited

Nil {2019: 84}, 5% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs.100,000 {2019; 100,000) each.
Nadira Propertles Private Limited

Nil {2019:29), 0% Optionaf Convertible Debenturas of Rs. 1,000,000 (2019:1,000,000) each
Nil {2019:109), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100,000 (2019:100,000) each
Prakalpa Properties Private Limited

Nil {2019:51}, 6% Optienal Cenvertible Debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 (2019:1,000,000) each
Nil {2515:58}, 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs, 100,000 (2019:100,0800) each
Purnachandra Properties Private Limited

Nil (2019:58), 0% Opticnal Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 ¢2019:1,000,000) sach
NIl {2019:74), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 108,000 (2019:100,000) each
Shrevdita Properties Private Limited

Ril (2019:40), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1,000,600 (2019:1,000,000% each
Nil {2019:111}, 0% Optional Convertible Debenturas of Rs. 100,000 (2019:100,000) each
Sreepa Propertles Private Limited

Nil {2015:40}, (% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 {2019:1,000,000) each
Nil (2019:144), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100,000 (2019:100,000} each
Bouaatnvilla Pronerties Private Lintited

Nil (2019:37), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 (2019:1,000,000) each
Nil (2019:31), 0% Optionai Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100,000 (2019:100,000) each
Deepesh Properties Private Limited

Nil (2019:826), 4% Optional Convertible Debantures of Rs. 100,000 (2019: 100,000) sach
Larkspur Properties Private Limited

Nit (2019:41), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 (2019:1,000,000) each
Nil {2015:74), 0% Optfonal Convertible Debenturas of Rs. 100,000 (2019: 100,000} each
Pranesh Properties Private Limited

Nil (2017:61), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 {2019:1,000,000) each
Nil (2019:26), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 180,000 {2018; 100,000} each
Radhapriva Properties Private Limited

Nil (2019:38), 0% Optional Convertible Debenturas of Rs. 1,000,000 (2019:1,000,000) each
Nil (2019:1,218), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100,000 (2019:100,000} each
Lantana Prenerties Private Limited

Nil {2018:1.002). 0% Optional Cumulative GCDs of Rs. 100,000 {2019:Rs. 100,000} each
Suzone Properties Private Limited

NI (2019:548), 0% Optional Convertible Debentures of Rs, 100,000 (20619:100,000) sach
Lilliam Properties Private Limited

Total investments

B Long Ternt:

. '31.Mar.20

7 731Mar.10

$1Mar.20

100 (2019:100), 0.10% Cumulative Optionally Cenvartible Debentures of Rs. 10,000,000 each

Nil (2019: 49), 0% Opticnal Convertible Debentures of Rs.1,000,600 {2019; 1,000,000) each.

Nil (2019:291), 0% Optionat Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100,000 {March 2018:Rs. 100,000} each

15,62,768
1,54,0037 879

15,62,768
1,54,00,37,879

1,00,00,00,000

1,00,00,00,000

6.00.00.000
32,00.900

3.00.00.000
36.00.000

6.40,00,000
58.00.000

2.30,00,000
1.62.00.000

5.10,00,000
24.00,000

4.80.00,000
61.00.000

6.60.00.000
1.15,00.000

5.30,00.000
82.00.000

6.00.00.000
24.,00.000

6.00.00,000
2.50,00,000

5,30.00,000
36.00.000

4.90.00.000
84,00.000

2.90,00.000
1.02,00.000

5.10.00.900
58.00.000

5.60.00.000
74.00.000

4.00.00.000
1.11,00.000

4.00,00,000
53.00.000

3.70.00.000
31.00.000

8.26.,00.000

4.10.00.000
74,00,000

6.10,00.000
26.00.000

3.60.00.000
12,18.00.000

10.02.00.000
5.48,00.000
2.91.00.000

1.54.16.00.647

1.54.16.00.647

1,00.00.00.000

2.54.58.00,000




6. Loans

Amoupts in INR

ve— e bonaTerm ot ShortTerm
31.Mar.20 3LMar19 | 31MAr28 | aimaris

Carried at amortised cost )
Securfty deposits
Unsecured, considered good, to related parties ; - - - -
Unsecured, considered acod, to other parties : -, - - -
Loans to related parties : !
Unsecured, considared qood 15.72.88,086 . 13.37,63,288 2.99.61,92,921 . 1.52.22,67,921

15.72.88.066 I 13.37.63.283 I 2.89,61.92,921 ] 1,52,22.67.971 |

Amounisin INR

7. Others
] Lunn]Ierm ; . ShortTerm . __
31.Mar.20 31.Mar.19 I 31.Mar.20 ° 31.Mar.19 |
Other leans ' :
Loans to emplevees (unsecured considerad good} - - - -
Advances receverable In cash or kind 53,57.171: 17.58.180
Other Receivables ;
Interest accrued on Loans and debentures to Subsidiaries / FO/ Investments 9.66.793 8.99.747
Yotal ‘ =] B 53,23,064 | 26,57,937 |




8. Other assets

Amounts in INR

o Long Term i Short Term

. “31.Mar.20 - 31.Mar.19 _ 31.Mar.20 | 31.Mar.19 |
Advances against material and services - ~ 2,500 : 10,690
Prepaid expenses - - 6,645 ! 22,789
Recoverable Expenses - - 1,28,806
Balance with statutory / government Authorities - - 1,52,874 3,18,183
Total other assets - - 1,62,019 4,80,468

9. Non ~Current income tax

Amonnt in INR

Particulars

31.Mar.20 31.Mar.19
Tds Receivablos 8.08,959 49,908,778
3,08,959 49,28,778

10. 'Cash and Cash Equivalents

Amounts in INR
.. Particulars 31.Mar.20 | 31.Mar.19
Cash and cash equivalents
-Cash on hand - -
-Balances with Banks
-In current accounts 26,46,949 23,36,701
Total 26,46,949 23,36,701
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12. Other Equity

Amounts in INR

Surplus in the statement of prefit and loss
At 1 April 2018

Add: Net profit for the year

Add: additions ir the other equity

At 31 March 2019

Add: Net profit for the year

Add: additions in the other equity

At 31st March 2020

Equity component of Debentures
At 1 April 2018

Add: additions in the other equity
At 31 March 2019

Add: additions in the other equity
At 31st March 2020

Other items of Comprehensive Income
At 31 March 2019

Add: Actuarial gain or iosses during the period
At 31 March 2020

___ Particulars

_|_ 3ist M_arsh_z@’

-79,40,33,400
-32,66,01,090

-1,12,08,34,480
-34,39,33,729

~1,46,45,68,219

2,59,46,00,000

2,59,46,00,000

2,59,46,00,000

~4,590

3,863
-727

Total reserves and surplus as at 31st March 2020

1,13,00,31,054 |

Total reserves and surplus as at 31st March 2018

1,47,39,60,920




13 'Financial liabilities - Borrowings

Amounts in INR

P rticulars -

31 March 2020-"| 31 March 2019

Non - Current

* Current

31:March 2020

!

31 March 20193

'

Unsecured borrowings
Loans frem related parties
Loans frem group cempany {unsecured) 2,25,03,48,387 74,58,15,000 1,06,74,00,000 2,26,49,70,000
Secured Borrowings
From Bank:
Indian rupee term loan from banks (secured) 1,39,50,00,000 1,45,50,00,000 - -

Total i 3,64,53,48 387 | 2,20.08,15,000 1,06,74,00,000 2,26,49,70,000

As on 31,03.2019, the company had the following borrowings with GMR Infrastructure Limited {GIL} - 100 number of 0% Compulsery Convertible debenture
(CCDs}of Rs.1,00,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 100.00 Crores; 13,826 number of 0% Cempulsory Convertibie debenture of Rs. 100,000 each aggregating to Rs.
138.26 Crores; 2,12,00,600 number of 0% Compulsory Convertible Debentures of Rs.10 aggregating to Rs.21.20 Crores and a loan of Rs. 34,74 crores at an
interast rate of 12.25% pa for a perfod of 3 years, totalling to Rs. 258.46 crores of Debentures and Rs. 34.74 crores of loan. Also the company had taken long
term loan of Rs.39.84 Crs @11% from GMR Tuni Anakapaili Expressways Private Limited. Also the company had taken short term loan of Rs. 14.40 creres from
GMR Highways at 12.25% pa, loan of R5.150 Crores from GMR Infra Services Limited at 19% pa, loan of Rs.29.82 Crs from GMR Tambaram Tindivanam
Expressway Limited at 6% pa, loan of Rs 10.94 Crs from GMR Pochanapalli Expressway Limited at 9.5% pa, loan of Rs 8.72 Crs from GMR Pochanapalli Expressway
Limited at 10% pa and alse 2.59 Crs loan taken from its subsidiaries at 0%, for a period of 12 months. The company also borrowed term loan of Rs. Rs.150 Crs
from Yes Bank Limited at an interest rate of Rs.13.25% P.A (Rs.4.5 crs shown as short term from this). with tenor of 96 months secured against companies trade
receivables and moveable properties. As on 31st March 2019, the company had Rs. 259,46 crares of CCDs, Rs. 220.08 crores of long term berrowings and Rs.
230.99 crores of short term borréwings.

During the current financial year, the company had availed a 3 year loan of Rs. 39.99 crores from GIL at 12.25% pa, also availed a loan of Rs.150¢ Crs from GMR
Infra Developers Limited at 12.25% for 3 year, and also availed a loan of Rs.1 Cr from Honeyflower estates Private Limited @ 12.25% p.a for 3 years. Company
also repaid of Rs.3.00 Crs to YES Bank., Rs.150 Crs paid to GMR Infra Services Limited, Rs.7 crs to GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressway Limited, Rs.0.7 Crs to
Honey flower Estates Private Limited and Rs.2.59 Crs to its whaole owned subsidiaries. As on 31st March 2020, the company had Rs. 259.46 crores of CCDs, Rs.
364.53 crores of long term borrowings and Rs. 106.74 crores of short term borrowings.

The debentures are optionally convertible, at the option of the debenture holders, at any time not exceeding 120 months (the term) froem the date of issue of
debentures into equity shares, and at a valuation to be mutuaily agreed upon as per the valuation to be done by a reputed Chartered Accountant firm at the time
of conversion. In case the option is not exercised by the debanture holder, the Company shal! at the end of the above term, convert the same into equity shares as
per the aforesaid valuation methodelogy. In case of CCDs, the debentures are Compulsory Convertible at the end of 60 months (the term) from the date of
alietment of debentures inte equity shares at a vatuation to-be mutually agreed upon as per the valuation to be done by a reputed Chartered Accountant firm at
thes FF £ i




14. Provisions

Amounts in INR

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Compensated Absences
Provision for Gratuity

Provision for other employee benefits
Total

o Long-term f Short-term |
.31 March 20620 : 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

1,42,754 97,755 15,332 10,873

1,31,497 . 86,532 | 3,451 2,670
- - 3,287 3,121
2,74,251 1,84,287 22,070 16,664

1.5. Financial liabilities - Trade payables

Amounts in INR

Particulars

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Trade Payable

- Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
- Related parties

- Others

TOTAL

There are no micre and smali enterprises, to which the
company owes dues, based on the information available with
the Company and this has been reiied upon by the Auditors’ of |

the Company

19,85,023 i 15,52,861

82,000 ° 1,82,000
20,67,023 | 17,34,861

16. Other Financial Liabilities

Amounts in INR

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Current maturities of leng term borrowings
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Interest accrued but not paid on borrowings
Non trade payable

Total other financial liabilities

Non Current Current
31 March 2020 [ 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019

o ﬁ 7,50,00,000 ° 4,50,00,000

. 34,30,93,717 30,98,08,059
. 1,52,46,575
2,80,131 5,22,561

- - 41,83,73,848 | 37,05,77,195

17. Other Liabilities

Amounts in INR

Non Current _ ‘ ] Current ]
31 March 2020 : 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 ° 31 March 2019

Statutory liabilities
Total

84,68,596 : 86,44,906
- 84,68,506 86,44,906




18. Revenue From Operations

Breakup of "Revenue From Operations” in profit and loss is as follows:

Amounts in INR
L | Period Ended | Year Ended
Revenue from operakions . 31 March 2019 _ 31 .Mar.19
Income from Contracts i - i -
Income from management and other services : 49,08,640 ¢ 16,295,029
Grand Total 49,08,640 16,29,029

19. Other income

Amounts in INR

| Period Ended - Year Ended
|. 31 March 2020~ 31.Mar.19
Other income
Profit from sale of Investments 5 4,06,228 4,68,442
Interest on. ; |
Interest from loan to group companies 3 : 2,25,52,855 38,01,167
Bank deposits and others 12,04,881 ¢ 6.47,69,116
Provisions/Liability no longer required written back o 1,250 ¢ -
2,41,65,214 __ 6,90,38,725




20. Emplovee Benefits Expense
Amounts in INR

Period Ended : Year Ended
31 March 2020 | 31.Mar.19
Salaries, wages and honus ' 17.98,056 | 17,06.921
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,25,659 ; 1.19.527
Contribution to Gratuity : 49,600 ! 32,622
Staff welfare expenses 1,605 1,500
: 19,74,929 18,60.570
21. Depreciation & amortisation expenses Amounts in INR
) Period Ended Year Ended
31 March 2020 . 31.Mar.19
Depreciation on office equipments : 4,700 :
; 4,700 . 35,500
22. Other expenses Amounts in INR
' ) Period Ended ' Year Ended
31 March 2020 . 31.Mar.19
Rates and taxes : 13,440 19,016
Communication costs : 5 6.198 2,550
Printing and stationery ‘ 1,002 - 1.548
Travelling and Convevence j 24,834 30
l.eaal and Professional fees ‘ 51,87.552 19,25,909
Bank Charges 9,193 3.540
Payments to Auditors: :
- Audit Fee : 80,000 1,18,000
Loss on investment C 2,00,000 :
tand Davelopment Charges ‘ - 35,500
Total : 55,32.219 21,06.093
: Amounis in INR
Period Ended Year Ended
31 March 2020 31.Mar.19
Payment to Auditors (Included in other expenses
above)
As Auditor i
Audit fee 50,000 50.000
Limited review _ 30,000 68,000
Tax audit fees 5 :
In other capacity
- Group reporting
Other services :
-Certification fees ‘ - -
80,000 | 1,18,000

23. Financial Charaes
Amounts in INR

Period Ended Year Ended

31 March 2020 31.Mar.19
Interest on borrowings . 36,37.89,429 . 39,32,97,731
Interest others : 5,01,320 4,450
Total : 36,42.90,749 39.33.02,181
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25. Significant accounting judaements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the company’s financial staterments requires management te make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the repoerted amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disciosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS [y

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrylng amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
oceur.

Impairment of noen-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net seliing price and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, uniess the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or Company’s assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash Flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. In determining net sefling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation mode! is used.

Defined benefit plans {gratuity benefits}

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value. of the gratuity cbiigation are determined using actuarial veluations.
An actuarial valuation involves making varicus assumptions that may differ frem actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the compiexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each

rannrtinn data
The parameter mest subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the

management considers the interest rates of governmant bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-empleyment
benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly avaifable mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
interval in respense to demographic changes. Future saiary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation
rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligaticns are given in Note 22.
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financiat liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigues including the DCF model. The inputs to these models
are taken from chservable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in astablishing fair
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.




26, Gratuity and other past-smptayment benefit plans

a) Defined Contribution Plans «
The Company's Contribution to Provident and Pension Fund charged to Investment properties are as follows :
Amount in INR

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Provident and penslon fund 45,746 32622
Total 45,746 32,622
b) Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity as per Actaarial Valuation as at March 31, 2020 [Funded]
Amouant in INR
Particulars 2013-20 2018-19
i} Change in defined benefit obligation
Cpening defined benefit obligation 89,202 56,580
Current Service Cost 25,379 23,732
Interest cost 8,779 4,300
Acquisition Cost/{Credit) - -
Re-measurement galns (fosses} on defined benefit plans. 12,588 4,590
Benefits paid - -
Closing defined benefit ebligation 1,34,948 89,202
i) Change in fair value of plan assets:
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year - -
Interest income on plan assets - -
Return on plan assets greater /{lesser) than distount rate - -
Contributions by employer - -
Beqeflts pald -
Closing fair value of plan assets N -
iif) Amount Recognized jn the Balance Sheet
Present Vatue of Obligatien as at year end 134,948 89,202
Fair Value of pfan assets at year end - -
Funded status 1,34,948 85,202
Less : Asset ceiling adjustment - - -
Net defined benefit assety {liability) recognized 1,394,948 89,202
iv) Expenses recognised during the period
In Investment properties
Current Service Cost 26,379 23,732
et interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset} 6,779 4,300
- 33,158 28,032
In Investment properties
Actuarial {gain)/ioss en defined banefit obligation - Experience Adjustments 12,588 4,590
Actuarlal changes arising from changes in demcgraphic assurptions - -
Actuarial changes arlsing from changes in financial assumptions -
Return on plan assets (greater}/lass than discount rate - -
. - 12,588 4,590
Taotal expense - 45,746 32,622
v) The major category of plan assefs as z percentage of the Fair value of total pian assels are as follows:
Investment with Insurer managed funds 100% 100%
vi}) Principal actuarial assumptions used
Dlscount rate (p.a.) 7.60% 7.60%
Expected rate of retum on plan assets {p.a.) 7.60% 7.60%
Expected rate of Increase n salary B.00% 6.00%
Altrition Rate 5.00% 5.00%
60 Years &0 Years

Retirement Age

€) Leave Encashment

Liability towards Leave Encashment based on Actuartal valuation amounts to Bs. 1,58,086 as at March 31, 2020 [March 31, 2019: Rs.1,08,627].
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N 28. Related Party transactions
(A} Names of Related parties and nature of related partv relationships

{a) Subdiaries Kakinada SEZ Limited (KSLY

Advika Properties Private Limited
H Aklima Preperties Private Limited
i Amartya Properties Private Limited
Asteria Real Estates Private Limited
Baruni Properties Private Limited
Camelia Properties Private Limited
Eila Properties Private Limited
Gerbera Properties Private Limited
Lakshmipriva Properties Private Limited
Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited
Idika Properties Private Limited
Krishnapriva Properties Private Limited
Nadira Properties Private Limited
Prakalpa Properties Private Limited
Purnachandra Properties Private Limited
Shrevdita Properties Private Limited
Sreepa Preperties Private Limited
Beuaainvilla Properties Private Limited
Deepesh Progerties Private Limited
Padmapriva Properties Private Limited
Larkspur Properties Private Limited
Pranesh Properties Private Limited
Radhapriva Properties Private Limited
Lantana Prooerties Private Limited
Haney Flower Estates Private Limited
Namitha Reai Estates Private Limited
Suzone Properties Private Limited
Lilliam Properties Private Limited
Kakinada Gatewav Port Limited {KGPL)

(b) Fellow Subdiaries GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressway Limited {GTTEL)
GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressway Limited (GTAEL)
GMR Krishnaairi SIR Limited {GKSIR}
GMR Hyderabad Vilavawada Expressway Private Limfted {GHVEPL)
GMR Highways Limited (GHWL) { GMR Kishangarh Udaipur Ahmedabad Expressway Private
Limited {GKUAEPL) mergered with GHWL)
Dhruvi Securities Limited {Dhruvi}
GMR Infra Services Limited (GISL) {formerly known as GMR SEZ Infra Services Limited}
GMR Pochanapalli Expressway Limited {GPEL)
GMR Infra Developers Limited (GIDL)

(c} Holding companv GMR Infrastructure Limited
GMR Enterprise Private Limited

{d) Kev management personnel Mr, Krishna Kumar Kollapureddy - Manager
’ Mr. Mellikariun DVR - Chief Financial Gfficer
Mr. Utkarsh Gupta - Company Secretary




{B)

Summary of transactions with the ahove related parties is as follows:

Amgunts in INR

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

i) Other Equity - Equity component of Related Party
Loans

~_ Subsidiary - Kakinada ‘Gateway Port Limited

1,54,00,37,879

ii} Redemption Subsidiaries debenfure investment

Advika Properties Private Limited 6,32,00,000 -
Aklima Properties Private Limited 3,36,00,000 -
Amartya Properties Private Limited 5,98,00,0048 -
Asteria Real Estates Private Limited 3,92,00,000 1,28,00,000
Baruni Properties Private Limited 5,34,00,000 -
Bougainvillea Properties Private Limited 4,01,00,000 -
Camelia Properties Private Limited 5,41,00,000 -
Deepesh Praperties Private Limited 8,26,00,000 .1,74,00,000
Eila Properties Private Limited 7.75,00,600 B
Gerbera Properties Private Limited 6,12,00,000 -
Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited 8,50,00,000 -
Idika Properties Private Limited 5.66,00,000 =
Krishnapriva Properties Private Limited 5,74,00,000;

4,30,000

Lakshmipriva Properties Private Limited 6,24,040,000 ‘
Lantana Properties Private Limited 10,02,00,000 19,00,600
Larkspur Properties Private Limied 4,84,00,000 10,00,000
Lilliam Properties Private Limied 2,91,00,000 50.00,C00
Nadira Properties Private Limied 3,92,00,000 7,900,000
Prakalpa Propererties Private Limited 5,68,00,000 9,00,G00
Pranesh Properties Private Limited 6,36,00,000 14,00,000
. Purnachandra Preperties Private Limited 6,34,00,000 44,00,300
Radhapriva Properties Private Limited 15,78,00,000 38,00.,000
Shreyadita Properties Private Limtied 5,11,00,000 2,00,00,000
= Sreepa Properties Private Limtied 4,53,00,000 91,00,000
Suzone Properties Private Limited 5,48,00,000 44,00,000
iii) Loan taken_ -
Fellow Subsidiary - GTTEL - 39,82,93,216

Fetlow Subsidiary - GPEL

19,67,06,784

__Fellow Subsidiary - GISL

1,50,00,0C,000

Holding Company - GIL

39,89,33,387| .

34,60,15,000

Fellow Subsidiary - GKUAEPL

14,40,00,000

_Feltow Subsidiary - GIDL

1,50,60,00,000

7,00,000

Subsidiary - Advika Properties Private Limited
Subsidiary - Aklima Properiies Private Limited - 36,006,000
Subsidiary - Amartva Properties Private Limited 2,36,50,000 63,50,000
Subsidiary - Baruni Properrties Private Limtied - 3%,00,000
Subsidiary - Beugainvillea Properties Private Limited ©4,00,300 s -
Subsidiary - Eila Properties Private Limited . .24,75,000 8,006,000
Subsidiary - Honey flower Real Estates Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,13,00,000
| Subsidiary - Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited 9,45,000 11,00,000
Subsidiary - Idika Properties Private Limited 29,05,000;: . 12,75.,000
Subsidiary - Krishnapriya Propererties Private Limited - 13,75,000
Subsidiary - Lakshmipriya Propererkies Private Limited - 1,50,000
Subsidiary - Padmapriva Properties Private Limited 33,10,000
" Subsidiary - Lantana Properties Private Limited - 4,00,000
Subsidiary - Larkspur Propariies Private Limited = | 36,20,000 4,00,000
Subsidiary - Nadira Propererties Private Limited 2,50,060 15,50,G00
Subsidiary - Prakalpa Propererties Private Limited 4,40,000 54,50,000
Subsidiary - Pranesh Properties Private Limited - ..1,00,000
Subsidiary - Radhapriva Properties Private Limited 1,05,20,000 8,50,000
Subsidiary - Sreepa Properties Private Limfied 1 9,65,000 88,50,000
Subsidiary - Purnachandra Properties Private Limited - 37,00,000
. Subsidiary - Asteria Real Estates Private Limited - 10,00,0600:
Subsidiary - Lilliam Properties Private Limited N 2,00,600!
Subsidiary - Deepesh Properties Private Limited 1,12,90,000 B 22,00,000:
Subsidiary - Shreyadita Properties Private Limited - 42,00,000:
iv) Interest on Borrowings B :
| . Fellow Subsidiary - GTAEL 4,39,44,066
Holding Company - GIL 5,92,17,981

Feliow Subsidiary - Dhruvi

Feliow Subsidiary - GTTEL

2,39,40,052

Fellow Subsidiary - GPEL

1,91,75,?61@

. .Fellow Subsidiary - GISL

Fellow Subsidiary - GHWL

Subsidiary - Honey flower Real Estates P

_1,76,88

3,356,




v) Refund of Borrowings

Fellow Subsidiary - GTAEL

1,23,00,000

Holding Company - GIL

Fellow Subsidiary - GTTEL 7,00,00,000 o
Fellow Subsidiary - GISL i,5¢0,00,00,000: -
Fellow Subsidiary - Dhruvi ] - 59,50,00,000]
Subsidiary - Advika Properties Private Limited 20,000 6,80,000;
Subsidiary - Aklima Properties Private Limited =~ 31,60,000 4,40,000!
Subsidiary - Amartya Properties Private Limited 3,62,80,000 1,20,000
Subsidiary - Baruni Properrties Private Limtied 30,30,000 70,000
Subsidiary - Asteria Real Estates Private Limited 30,000 1,30,00,000
Subsidiary - Camelia Properties Private Limited 4,925,000 -
Subsidiary - Eila Properties Private Limited B 32,75,000 ) -
Subsidiary - Degpesh Properties Private Limited 1,10,15,000 1,74,00,000
Subsidiary - Honey flower Real Estates Private Limited 70,00,000 1,13,00,000:
Subsidiary - Larkspur Properties Private Limited 40,20,000 -
Subsidiary - Krishnapriva Properties Private Limited 13,75,000 -
Subsidiary - Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited 20,25,000 20,000
Subsidiary - Idika Properties Private Limited 39,70,000 2,10,000
Subsidiary - Lakshmipriya Propererties Private Limited 1,10,000 40,000
Subsidiary - Padmapriya Properties Private Limited 33,10,000 -
Subsidiary - Prakalpa Properties Private Limited 58,906,000 } -
Subsidiary - Pranesh Properties Private Limited i,08,000, . -
Subsidiary - Nadira Properties Private Limited i8,00,000 o -
Subsidiary - Lantana Properties Private Limited 3,85,000, ...15,600
Subsidiary - Lilliam Properties Private Limited = 50,00,000
Subsidiary - Sreepa Properties Private Limited 12,10,000: _..82,55,000
Subsidiary - Shreyadita Properties Private Limited . 2,10,00,000
Subsidiary - Radhapriya Properties Private Limited 1,13,70,000 -

Subsidiary - Purnachandra Properties Private Limited 1,20,000,
vi) Loan given
Subsidiary - Kakinada Gateway Port Limited -
Fellow Subsidiary - GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited 6,14,00,000.
Subsidiary - Honey flower Real Estates Private Limited ©20,00,000 -

_____Subsidiary - Asteria Real Estates Private Limited 2,45,000
Subsidiary - Advika Properties Private Limited 4,50,000
Subsidiary - Aklima Properties Private Limited ___3,50,000

__Subsidiary - Amartya Properties Private Limited -
Subsidiary - Baruni Properties Private Limited -
Subsidiary - Camelia Properties Private Limited 2,00,000
Subsidiary - Idika Properties Private Limited 1,00,000
Subsidiary - Gerbera Properties Private Limited -
Subsidiary - Bougainvillea Properties Private Limited -
Subsidiary - Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited -
Subsidiary - Lakshmipriya Properties Private Limited -
Subsidiary - Eila Properties Private Limited -
Subsidiary - Sreepa Properties Private Limited 4,54,05,000 -
Subsidiary - Suzone Properties Private Limited 6,35,35,000 52,50,000
Subsidiary - Shreyadita Properties Private Limited 5,23,10,000 _5,20,000|
. Subsidiary - Padmapriya Properties Private Limited 45,15,000] .59,70,000

_Subsidiary - Lilliam Properties Private Limited .3,71,05,000| 58,00,000
Subsidiary - Deepesh Properties Private Limited _..7,15,00,000 2,75,000
Subsidiary - Lantana Properties Private Limtied .10,02,00,000 2,00,000
Subsidiary - Prakalpa Properties Private Limtied 5,09,00,000: -
Subsidiary - Purnachandra Properties Private Limtied 6,43,70,000] -
Subsidiary - Larkspur Properties Private Limtied 4,51,00,000; -
Subsidiary - Krishnapriva Properties Private Limtied 5,61,00,000 -
Subsidiary - Nadira Properties Private Limtied 3,75,75,000 -
Subsidiary - Pranesh Properties Private Limtied 6,36,00,000; -
Subsidiary - Radhapriva Properties Private Limtied 14,60,00,000:




vii) Refund of Loan given o
Subsidiary - Advika Properties Private Limited - 7,090,000
Fellow Subsidiary - GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited 5,83,00,000 37,00,000

- 7,50,000

20,00,000 -

68,706,000 2,00,000

2,00,000 -

Subsidiary - Bougainvillea Properties Private Limited 1,50,000 8,83,261
Subsidiary - Camelia Properties Private Limited 20,000 12,03,818
Subsidiary - Gerbera Properties Private Limited | 3,80,000 15,00,000
Subsidiary - Eila Properties Private Limited - 19,00,000
Subsidiary - Honeysuckle Preperties Private Limited - 14,00,000
Subsidi dika Properties Private Limited - ~1,00,000
Sub: y - Lakshmipriya Properties Private Limited - - 7,00,000
Subsidiary - Suzone Properties Private Limited - .5,25,000

viii} Interest on Lending / Debenture Investment
Subsidiary - Honeyflower Estates Private Limited ) 6,142 s
Fellow Subsidiary - GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited 21,21,935 .1,11.760
Subsidiary - Kakinada Gateway Port Limited .2,04,24,778 38,01,167

ix) Consultancy Service given by
Holding Company - GIL 2,494,141 16,41,634

x) Reimbursement of Expenses to o e
Fellow Subsidiary - GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited . 46,29,057 70,891,
Subsidiary - Radhapriva Properties Private Limited - 67,06,838!
Subsidiary - Amartya Properties Private Limited 32

xi) Reimbursement of Expenses by ;
Feillow Subsidiary - GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited 30,254f}
Subsidiary - Kakinada SEZ Limited - 59,000,

xii) Consultancy Service given to o :
Subsidiary - Advika Properties Private Limited 2,26,196 64,001,
Subsidiary - Aklima Properties Private Limited - 1,34,399 34,945
Subsidiary - Amartya Properties Private Limited ~1,02,013 69,579
Subsidiary - Asteria Real Estates Private Limited .1,14,512 33,469
Subsidiary - Baruni Properties Private Limited _1,68,361 51,714
Subsidiary - Bougainvilla Properties Private Limited ~2,01,790 53,666
Subsidiary - Camelia Properties Private Limited . 2,23,871 54,156
Subsidiary - Deepesh Properties Private Limited _2,25,170 74,223
Subsidiary - Eila Properties Private Limited 2,05,261 72,491
Subsidiary - Gerbera Properties Private Limited 2,10,158 60,703
Subsidiary - Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited 2,20,081 72,963
Subsidiary - Idika Properties Private Limited 2,04,069 57,593
Subsidiary - Krishnapriya Properties Private Limited 2,28,683 58,090
Subsidiary - Lakshmipriva Properties Private Limited 2,15,056, 64,363
Subsidiary - Lantana Properties Private Limtied =~ 2,08,136, 83,764

. Subsidiary - Larkspur Properties Private Limited 1,75,217; 57,407

| _Subsidiary - Lilliam Properties Private Limited 1,05,250; 27,906
Subsidiary - Nadira Properties Private Limited 1,47,941: 43,186
Subsidiary - Padmapriya Properties Private Limited 2,44,333. 1,58,428
Subsidiary - Prakalpa Properties Private Limited 1,82,606! 54,018
Subsidiary - Pranesh Properties Private Limited 2,26,426 65,280
Subsidiary - Purnachandra Properties Private Limited 2,31,706, 63,943
Subsidiary - Radhapriya Properties Private Limited 1,05,079; 1,02,296
Subsidiary - Shreyadita Properties Private Limited 2,20,017 52,223
Subsidiary - Sreepa Properties Private Limited 1,91,080 18,257
Subsidiary - Suzone Properties Private Limied 1,91,229 50,365




<)

Outstanding Balances at the vear-end :

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019:
i) Allotment of Equity Share Capital ) :
Holding Company - GIL 47,99,00,000 ~47,99,00,000
ii) Debentures
I-!oIdlng Company - GIL (CCD-treated as other 2,59,46,00,000 2,59,46,00,000
equity} - )
iiii} Investment in equity of Subsidiaries ‘
Advika Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,060
Aklima Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Amartya Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Asteria Real Estates Private Limited 3,00,000 3,00,000
Baruni Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000;
Bougainvillea Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000] 1,00,00,0600
Camelia Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 _1,80,00,000
Deepesh Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,96,000)
_Efla Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Gerbera Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
l.akshmi Priva Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Larkspur Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Lantana Properties Private Limited 1,00,000 1,600,000
Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
__Idika Properties Private Limited 1,00,60,000 1,00,00,000
Krishnapriya Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Kakinada SEZ Limited 47,93,71,010 47,93,71,610
Nadira Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,060! 1,00,00,000
Pranesh Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Padmapriya Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
~Prakalpa Properties Private Limited 1,60,00,000 1,00,00,000
Purnachandra Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000; 1,00,00,000
Shreyadita Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Sreepa Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,000 1,00,60,000
Radhapriya Properties Private Limited 1,00,00,00¢ 1,00,00,000
Honey Flower Estates Private Limited ) 33,26,00,000 33,26,00,000
MNamitha Reai Estates Private Limited 1,00,000 1,00,000
Suzone Properties Private Limited - 1,00,000 1,00,000
Lilliam Properties Private Limited 1,00,000 1,00,000
East Godavari Power Distribution Company Private i 2’00,06‘5
Limited | 3
 GMR Utilities Private Limited 2,00,000; 2,00,000
iv) Investment in equity of Fellow Subsidiary
Dhruvi Securities Private Limited 5,000 5,000
v} Investment int Debentures (QOCD) of Snbsidiaries o
Advika Properties Private Limited - 6,32,00,000
Aklima Properties Private Limited - 3,36,00,000
Amartya Properties Private Limited - 6,98,00,000
Asteria Real Estates Private Limted - 3,92,00,000
__Baruni Properties Private Limited - 5,34,00,000
Bougainvillea Properties Private Limited - 4,01,00,000
Camelia Propertias Private Limited - $,41,00,000
Eila Properties Private Limited - 7,75,00,000
Gerbera Properties Private Limited - 6,12,00,000
Lakshmi Priva Properties Private Limited - 6,24,00,000
Larkspur Properties Private Limited - ~ 4,84,00,000:
Lantana Properties Private Limited - 10,02,00,000
Honeysuckfe Properties Private Limited - 8,50,00,000
Idika Properties Private Uimited - 5,66,00,000
Krishnapriya Properties Private Limited - 5,74,00,000
Nadira Properties Private Limited - 3,92,00,000
Pranesh Properties Private Limited - 6,36,00,000:
Prakalpa Properties Private Limited - 5,68,00,000°
Purnachandra Properties Private Limited - 6,34,00,000
Shreyadita Properties Private Limited - 5,11,00,000
Sreepa Properties Private Limited - 4,53,00,000
Rachapriya Properties Private Limited - 15,78,00,000
Deepesh Properties Private Limited - 8,26,00,000:
Suzone Properties Private Limited - 5,48,00,000!
Lilliam Properties Private Limited - 2,91,00,000:




v—ij ---- Loan taken o 4
 Fellow Subsidiary~-GTAEL 39,84,00,000 39,84,80,000
~ Fellow Subsidiary - GHWL 4,40,00,000 14,40,00,000 |
| Fellow Subsidiary - GTTEL _ 32,82,93,216 39,82,93,216
" Fellow Subsidiary — GISL N 1,56,00,00,000 :
| Fellow Subsidiary — GPEL 19,67,06,784 19,67.06,784
B Holding Compeny - GIL. 74,73,48,387 34,74,15,000
| Fellow Subsidiary — GIDL 1,50,00,00,000 -
:_ _ Subsidiary — Pumachandra Properties Private Limited - 1,20,000
Subsidiary - Honeyflower Estates Private Limited 30,00,000 -
R Subsidiary — Advika Properties Private Limited - 20,000
i Subsidiary — Aklima Properties Private Limited - 31,60,000
B ~ Subsidiary — Amartya Properties Private Limited - 62,30,600
[ Subsidiary — Baruni Properties Private Limited - 30,30,600
i Subsidiary — Eila Properties Private Limited - §.00,000
B Subsidiary — Lakshmip@ya Properties Private Limited - [,10.000
- Subsidiary — Honeysugk}é Propertics Private Limited - 10,80,000
T Subsidiary — Idika Properties Private Limited - 10,65,000
- Subsidiary — Krishnapriya Propertics Private Limited - 13,75,000
B Subsidiary — Nadira Prdperties Private Limited - 15,350,000
i Subsidiary — Prakalpa Properties Private Limited - 54,530,000
- Subsidiary — Sreepa Properties Private Limited - 2,435,000 |
| Subsidiary — Lantana Properties Private Limited - 3,85,000
B Subsidiary — Pranesh Properties Private Limited - 1,00,000
B Subsidiary — Larkspur Prqurties Private Limited - 4,00,000
:_ Subsidiary — Radhapriya ‘P'roperties Private Limited - 8,50,000
El) Loan Given to Subsid}éries
| Advika Properiies Private Limited 6,36,50,000 -
| Aklima Properties Private Limited 3.82.10,000 -
N Amartya Properties Private Limited 3,40,00,000 -
N Asteria Real Estates Private Limited 3.94,00,000 2,45,000:
| Baruni Properties Private Limited 5,02,00,000 -
| Bougainvilla Properties Private Limited 4,39,76,739 23.16,739
| Camelia Properties Private Limited 5,09,91,182 15,96,182
| Deepesh Properties Private Limited 7,15,00,000 2,775,000
_Eila Properties Private Limited =~~~ 6,63,00,000 -
‘Gerbera Properties Private Limited 5,90,50,000 3,50,000
GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Limited e 31,00,000: -
Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited 8,35,60,000; -
Idika Properties Private Limited 5,11,25,000;‘ ) -
Kakinada Gateway Port Limited 15,41,93,570 13,37,63,288
Kakinada SEZ Limited ¢+ - 1,50,00,00,000 1,50,00,00,000
Krishnapriya Properties Private Limited ~5,61,00,000 -
] Lakshmipriya Properties Private Limited ~6,09,00,000 -
| Lantana Properties Private Limited 10,02,00,000 -
| Liliarn Properties Private Limited 4,51,00,000 38,00,000
| Larkspur Praperties Private Limited 4,09,05,000 -
Madira Properties Private Limited 3,75,75,000 -
Prakalpa Properties Private Limited 3,09,00,000 -
Pranesh Properties Private Limited 6,36,00,000 -
Padmapriva Properties Private Limited 34,15,000, 57,70,000!
Purnachandra Properties Private Limited _ 6,43,70,000: -
Radhapriya Properties Private Limited 14,60,00,000- B -
Shreyadita Properties Private Limited 5,28,30,000 5,20,000
i Sreepa Properties Private Limited 4.54.05,000. .
Suzone Properties Private Limited 7,09,30,000;




viii) Interest on Borrowing o
_ Holding Company - GIL 6,70,22,774 1,38,49.413
Fellow Subsidiary — GPEL 1,9542,5111 7,54,456
Fellow Subsidiary — GISL - 5,87,49,041
Feliow Subsidiary - GHWL 2,71,28,145 97.97,449
Fellow Subsidiary — GTTEL 931,72,544 | 12,94,26,497
Fellow Subsidiary — GTAEL 11,96,21,779 8,00,72,120
Subsidiary - Honey Flower Estates Private Limited 1,007
ix) Credifors / payable ‘ -
Holding Company - GIL 1,85,642 15,52,861
x) Debtirs / receivables - -
Advika Properties Private Limited 2,44,291 69,121
Akiima Properties Private Limited 1,45,151 § 37,741
Amartya Properties Private Limited 1,10,173 75,143
Asteria Real Estates Private Limited 1,23,672 36,146
Baruni Properties Private Limited - 2,37,680 55,851 |
Bougainvillea Properties Private Limited $2,17,933 57,959 |
Camelia Properties Private Limited 2,41,780 58,488
Deepesh Properties Private Limited 2,43,183 80,160
Eila Properties Private Limited 7 2,21,681 78,289
Gerbera Properties Private Limited 2,26,971 65,559
Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited _2,37,686 78,799 |
Idika Properties Private Limited 2,20,394 62,200
Krishnapriya Properties Private Limited 2,46,977 62,737
Lakshmipriya Properties Private Limited 2,32,260 68,353
Lantana Properties Private Limited __"2,24,786 : 90,465
Larkspur Properties Private Limited 1,859,234 61,999
Lilliam Properties Private Limited 1,13,669 30,138
Nadira Properties Private Limited 1,59,776 46,640 |
Padmapriya Properties Private Limited 2,63,879 1,71,102
Prakalpa Properties Private Limited 1,97,214 58,339 .
Pranesh Properties Private Limited ) 2,__44,540 70,502_'
Purnachandra Properties Private Limited 2,50,243 69,058
Radhapriya Properties Private Limited 1,13,485 1,16,47%
Shreyadita Properties Private Limited 2,37,618 56,400
Sreepa Properties Private Limited 2,06,366 | 52,117
Suzone Properties Private Limited 2,06,528 54,394
xi) Other Equity - Equity component of Related Party h
Loans given i _ o
Subsidiary - Kakinada Gateway Port Limited 1,54,00,37,879 1,54,00,37,879 .
Subsidiary - Kakinada SEZ Limited 15,62,768 15,62,768
xii) Other Equity - Equity component of Related Party i
Loans taken e
~ Fellow Subsidiary - GTAEL ] 3,99,75,579] 3,99,75,579
xiil) Ynterest receivable on Loan given _ :
Fellow Subsidiary — GKSIR 64,580
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Fair values
The carrying amount of all financial assets and lizbilities (except for those instruments carried at fair value) appearing in the financial
statements is reasonable approximation of fair values.

30

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is
to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets inciude loans, trade and cther receivables, and cash and cash
equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is expesed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks.
Company's senior management ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are geverned by appropriate policies and procedures and that
financia! risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk cbjectives. All derivative activities for risk
management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skilis, experience and supervision, It is the Company’s policy
that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks, which are summarised below.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fiows of a financial instrument wili fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk

comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market
risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, and derivative financial instruments.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations,
provisions. .

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

» The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item fs the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks, This is based on the financial
assets and financial Habilities heid at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates, The Companv does not have fluctuating interest rate borrowings, thus company does not have anv interest rate risk,

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flews of an exposure wiil fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Company does not have exposure to foreign currency payable or receivable haiances and hence it does not have any foreign currency risk.
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GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited Notes to IND AS Accounts

1.  Corporate Information

The company was incorporated on March 28, 2008 as GMR Oil and Natural Gas Private Limited. The
name of the company has been changed to GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Private Limited in March 2010.
Company has changed from Private Limited to Public Limited from 30" March 2017. The company is
pursuing the investment opportunities in companies in the field of promoting, establishing,
constructing, providing technical services, or related in any way to operate special economic zones
(SEZs) and in companies engaged in the business of designing, developing, building, maintaining or in
any way related to operating Sea Ports in India and abroad.

The registered office of the company is located in Mumbai, india.
Information on other related party relationships of the Company is provided in Note 28.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
08.05.2020,

2. Significant Accounting Policies

A.  Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS), under
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) (to the extent notified). The
Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR).

B. Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-cur. M
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: ¢




GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited . Notes to IND AS Accounts

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal cperating cycle

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading
ili) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv} Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for

at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is current when it is:

i) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv}) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liakility for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve
months as its operating cycle.

b. Property, plant and equipment

On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment as on 1 April 2015.

Land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under
development as at the balance sheet date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset are derecognised when replaced. Further, when each
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property,
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

On Transition to Ind AS, the Company has availed the optional exemption on “Long term Foreign
currency Monetary items” and has accordingly continued with the policy to adjust the exchange
differences arising on translation/ settlement of long-term foreign currency monetary items
pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset recognised in the financial statements for the
period ended 31 March 2016 { as per previous GAAP) to the cost of the tangible asset and depreciates
the same over the remaining life of the asset. In accordance with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
{'MCA’) circular dated August 09, 2012, exchange differences adjusted to the cost of tangible fixed




GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited Notes to IND AS Accounts

assets are total differences, arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items pertaining to the
acquisition of a depreciable asset, for the period. In other words, the Company does not differentiate
between exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are
regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost and other exchange differences.

Anitem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

c. Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on the Property plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates
arrived af, based on useful lives estimated by the management, which coincides with the lives
prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 except for assets individually costing less
than Rs. 5,000 which are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition and certain items of building, plant
and equipment, the Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and
management estimate, believes that the useful lives of such assets are different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated
useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to
be used.

The Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease is depreciated over the asset’s useful
life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Company will obtain ownership at the end of lease term.

Depreciation on adjustments to the historical cost of the assets on account of foreign exchange
fluctuations is provided prospectively over the residuat useful life of the asset.

d. Investment properties

Since there is no change in the functional currency, the Company has elected to continue with the
carrying value for all of its investment property as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial statements
as deemed cost at the transition date, viz., 1 April 2015.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumutated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects
if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

d in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual
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evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a vafuation model
recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal.

The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognised in profit or loss in the periad of derecognition.

e. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the
expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets include software etc and their useful lives are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Research and development cost:

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project
is recognised as an ‘intangible asset” when all of the below conditions are met:

i The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use
or sale

ii. The Company’s intention to complete the asset and use or sell it

iii. The Company has ability to use or sell the asset

iv. It can be demonstrated how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits

v. Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development'and to use or
sell the asset are available, and

vi. The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during

development.

f. Amortisation of intangible assets

intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered
to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets {Software ligences etc) are amortised over the useful life of 6 years as estimated by
the management. '
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g. Borrowing cost

h. Leases

Company as a lessee:

4
|
1
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Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the jease term unless either:

i) another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit
even if the payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or

i} the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary
because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met,

Company as a lessor:

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from Operating lease is recognised on a straight-
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Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership-
transfer from the Group to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded
as receivables at the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding in respect of the lease

i Inventories
Inventories are valued as follows:

Raw materials, components, stores and spares:

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value,
However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down
below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or
above cost. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and includes all applicabie costs in bringing
goods ta their present locations and condition.

Contract work-in-progress:

Costs incurred that relate to future activities on the contract are recognised as contract work-in-
progress. Contract work-in-progress comprises of construction cost and other directly attributable
overheads and are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Traded / Finished goods:

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and includes all applicable costs incurred in bringing goods to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

j. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash generating units’ (CGUs) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or Company of assets. When the carrying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down
toits recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, recent market transactions are taken into account,
it available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus
taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCl up to the amount of any
previous revaluation surplus. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying
amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.
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For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there s an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased.
If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

k. Provisions, COntingent liabilities, Contingent assets, and Commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obfigation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement
of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost."

Contingent liahility is disclosed in the case of:

* Apresent obligation arising from past events, when it is not prebable that an outfiow of
resources will not be required to settie the obligation

* A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

* Apossible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outfow of resources
is remote

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date

l. Retirement and other Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, pension fund, superannuation fund etc. are de
contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable.
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The Company recognizes contribution payable as expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the reporting date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liahility
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an
asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit
credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date, which recognised
each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure
each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
{excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCH in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods. Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

i) The date of the plan amendment or curtaiimant, and
ii) The date that the Company recognisas related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:

i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and lesses on
curtailments and non-routine settiements; and
it) Net Interest expense or income

Long term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability at the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

m. Financiat Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. '

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acguisition of the
hages or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
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established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on
the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i) Debtinstruments at amortised cost

ii) Debt instruments at fair value through cther comprehensive income (FVTOC!)

iii) Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
iv) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost: A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

v) The asset is heid within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
coniractual cash flows, and

vi} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR} method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EiR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables-

Debt instrument at FVTOCI: A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following
criteria are met:

vii) The ohjective of the business madel is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and
viii) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income
(OCl}). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument,
which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC!, is classified as
at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’}). The
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Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the
FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For ali other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and Is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOC, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts
from OClto P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain
or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L.

impairment of financial assets

Inaccordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL} model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

ix) Financigl assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e. g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balonce

x) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FYTOC

xi) Lease receivables under ind AS 17

Xif) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial gsset that result

from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18
x{if) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL
Xiv) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FYTPL

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on;

xv} Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
xvi) All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. i, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significan
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increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
alfowance based on 12-month ECL,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resufting from all possible default events over the expected
tife of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

xvii} Al contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, cail and
simifar options) over the expected life of the financial instrurnent. However, in rare cases when the
expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use
the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

xviii) - Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically ohserved default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company estimates the following provision matrix
at the reporting date:

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other
expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:

Xix) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e, as an integral part of the measurement of those
assets in the baldnce sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-
off criteria, the company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

xx) Loan commitments and financial quarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the
balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

Xxi) Debt instruments measured at FVTOC!: Since financiol assets are already reflected at fair value,
impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL omount is presented as
‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is
designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liahilities

Initial recognition and measurement
it
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Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.”

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss :

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financialliabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered inte by the
Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments, Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
profit or loss,

Financial Habilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk
are recognized in QCl. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such
liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The cornpany has not designated any financial
liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings :

This is the category most relevant to the company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EiR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts:

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment to
be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified dehtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts
are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher g
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the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the tiability is discharged or cancelled
or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or lass.

Reclassification of financial assets

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the company’s operations.
Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the
company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the
company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period foilowing the
change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
{including impairment gains or losses} or interest."

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net hasis, o realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and interest
rate swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks,
respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken
directly to profit or loss.

n. Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral
part of the Company’s cash management.

0. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either;

i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
if) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

- The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are avaitable to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant ohservable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Ali assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the.end of each reporting period."

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such

as derivative instrumenis and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring
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measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations, The Valuation
Committee comprises of the head of the investment properties segment, heads of the Company’s
internal mergers and acquisitions team, the head of the risk management department, financial
controllers and chief finance officer.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted
financial assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
Valuers are normally rotated every three years.

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For
this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the
fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change
is reasonable,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above,

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value.

p. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements
since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also
exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Sales tax/ value added tax {VAT) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax
collected on value added to the commaodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it
is excluded from revenue,

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised,

i. Income from management / technical services is recognised as per the terms of the agreement on
the basis of services rendered.

ii. On disposal of current investments, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal
proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss. Such income is included under
the head ‘other operating income’ for companies engaged in investing activities and under the head
‘other income’ for other companies in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Insurance claim is recognised on acceptance of the claims by the insurance company.

Revenue earned in excess of hillings has been included under ‘other assets’ as unbilled revenue and
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Expenditure including pre-operative and other incidental expenses incurred by the Group on
projects that are in the process of commissioning, being recoverable from the respective SPVs /
subsidiaries incorporated for carrying out these projects, are not charged to the statement of profit
and loss and are treated as advances to the respective entities.

The Company applied Ind AS 115 for the first time from April 1, 2018. Ind AS 115 supersedes Ind AS
11 Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18 Revenue and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.

in current financial year, Company does not have any revenue arising from contract with customers
and thus there fs no impact on the financial statements of the company on account this new revenue
recognition standard.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate {EIR}. EIR is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not
consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of
profit and loss.

Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

q. Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Current income tax

Currentincome taxis measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
- with the income Tax Act, 1961

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are




GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited Notes to IND AS Accounts

Current income tax relating to ttems recognised outside profit or loss js recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.”

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date. '

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

ii) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
fs probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

iii) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

iv) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will alfow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,




GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited Notes to IND AS Accounts

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the critera for separate
recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and
circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period
reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts
and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any
remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCl/ capital reserve depending on the principle
explained for bargain purchase gains. All other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit
or loss.

r Sales/ Value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:

I, When the taxincurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

Il Whenreceivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

5. Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') expenditure
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Related Party Transaction Details

For the year ended March 31, 2020
Transaction for the periad

GMR 5EZ & Fort Holdings Limited

Company Code EE121

All the: transaction during th period (loan taken/ lcan given/ security deposit given/ security deposit taken/ SAM refunded/ SAM taken)

1 GTTEL |_E3110 GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited Refund of Loan taken 7,00,00,000
2 GSISL 1_B39400 GMBR SEZ Infra Services Limited Refund of Loan taken 1,56,00,00,000
3 GKSIR | ESS500 GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited Loan given §,14,00,000
4 GKSIR |_ESSQ0 GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited Refund of Loan given 5,83,00,000
5 GIL [ E6100 GMR Infrastructure Limited Loan taken 39,99,33,387
6|  AMPPL ‘[i_ES5503 Amartya Properties Private imited Loan taken 2,36,50,000
7 BOPPL |_E5014 Bougainvillea Properties Private Limited Loan taken 64,00,000
8 EPPL |_E55086 Eila Properties Private Limited Loan taken 24,75,000
El HPPL | _E5509 Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited Loan taken 945,000
10 IPPL |_ES510 Idiks Properties Private Limited Loan taken 29,05,000
11] PAPPL |l E5523 Padimapriya Properties Private Limited Loan taken 33.10.000
12 PEPL I_E5513 Prakalpa Properties Private Limited Loan taken 4,460,000
13 SRPPL }_ES516 Sreepa Properties Private Limited Loan taken 9,565,000
14 LAPPL | E5018 Larkspur Properties Private Limited Loan taken 36,20,000
15 NPPL i_E5512 Nadira Properties Private Limited Loan taken 2,350,000
16 CPPL |_E5522 Deepesh Properties Private Limited Loan taken 1.12.90,000
17 RPPL |_E5525 Radhapriya Properties Privete Limited Loan taken 1,08, 20,000
13 GlOL | E6118 GMR Infra Develapers Limited Loan takén 1,50,00,00,000
19 HFEPL |_E55239 Honey Flower Estates Privats Uimited Loan taken 1,00,00,000
20 APPL 1_E5501 Advika Properties Private Limited Refund of Loan taken 20,000
21 AKPPL 1_E5502 Aklima Properties Private Limited Refund of Loan taken 31,60,000
22|  AMPPL |l E5502 Amartya Properties Private Limited Refund of Loan taken 3,62.80,000
23 AREPL L ESO1Y Asteria Real Estates Private Limited Refund of Loan taken 30.000
24 BPPL 1_£5504 Baruni Properties Privata Limited Refund of Loan taken 20,30.000
25 CPPL i_E5505 Camalia Properties Private Limited Refund of Loan taken 4,55,000
26 EPPL |_E5508 Eila Properties Private Limited Refund of Lean taken 32,75,000
27 HPPL 1_E5509 Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited Refund of Loan taken 20,25,000
28 tBPL 1_ESS10 idfka Properties Private Limited Refund of Loan taken 39,70,000
29 LPPPL |_E5508 Lakshmi Priva Properties Private Limitad Refund of Loan taken 1,10,000
30 PAPPL | E5523 Padmapriya Properties Private Limited Refund of Loan taken 33,10,000
31 PPPL |_E5513 Prakalpa Properties Private Limited Refund of Loan taken 58,90,000
32 PUPPL | E5514 Purnachandra Properties Private Limited Refund of Lean taken 1,20,000
33 SRPPL [ ESS1E Sreepa Properties Private Limited Refund of Loanh taken 12,10,000
34] LAPPL  ||_Escig Larkspur Properties Private Limited Refund of Loan taken 40,20,000
35 KPPL i_E5511 Krishnapriya Properties Private Limited Refund of Loan taken 13,75,000
35 NPPL | E5512 Nadira Properties Private Limited Refund of Loan takan 18,00,000
37 DPPL |_E5522 Beepesh Properties Private Limited Refund of Loan taken 1,10,15,000
38, PRPPL | ES524 Pranesh Properties Private Limited Refund of Loan taken 100,000
38 APPL |_ES525 Radhapriva Propertias Private Limited Refund of Loan taken 1,13,70,000
a0 LAN |_E5528 Lantana Properties Pvt Ltd Refund of Loan taken 3,85,000
41 HFEPL 1_E5529 Honey Flower Estates Private Limited Refund of Loan taken 70,00,000
42 APPL 1_E5501 Advika Properties Private Limited Loan given 6,36,50,000
43 AKPPL |_ESS02 Aklima Properties Private Limited Loan given 3,82,10,000
44 AMPPL | ESS03 Amartya Properties Private Limited Loan given 3,40,00,000
45 AREPL | ES017 Asteria Real Estates Private Limited Loan given 3,93,25 000
46 BPPL i_E5504 Baruni Properties Private Limitad Loan given 5,02,00,000
47 BOPPL _ lI_E5014 Bougainvillea Properties Private Limited Loan given 4,18,10,000
48 CPPL 1_E5505 Camelia Properties Private Limited Loan given 5,49,20,000
a8 EPPL |_ES506 Efla Properties Private Limited Loan given 6,63,00,000
50 GPL |_E5507 Gerbera Properties Private Limited Loan given 5,90,80,000
51 HPPL 1_E5509 Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited Loan given 8,35,60,000
52 IPPL |_ES510 Idika Properties Private Limited Loan given 5,12,25,000
53 LPPPL |_ES508 Lakshmi Priva Properties Private Limited Loan given 6,09,00,000
54 LPPL |_E5531 Lilliam Properties Private Limited Loan given 3,71,05,000
55 PAPPL [ E5523 Padmapriya Properties Private Limited Loan given 45,15,000
56 PPPL 1_£5513 Prakalpa Properties Private Limited Loan given 5,09,00,000
57 SPPL i_E5515 Shreyadita Properiies Private Limited Loan given 5,23,10,000
53 PUPPL 1_E5514 Purnachandra Properties Private Limited Loan given £,43,70,000
59 SRPPL |_E5516 Sreepa Properties Private Limited Loan given 4,54,05,000
&0 SUPPL |_ESS27 Surone Properties Private Limited Loan given 6,35,35,000
61 LAPPL |_E5018 Larkspur Properties Private Lirnited Loan given 4,51,00,600
(¥4 KPPL i E5511 Krishnapriya Propettias Private timited Loan given 5,61,00,000
63 NPPL |_E5512 Nadira Properties Private Limited Loan given 3,75,75,000
&1 DPPL |_E5522 Deepesh Properties Private Limited Loan given 7,15,00,000
&5 PRPPL ! E5524 Pranesh Properties Private Limited toan given 6,36,00,000
66 RPPL I F5525 Radhapriya Properties Private Limited Loan given 14,60,00,000
67 LAN |_£5526 Lantana Properties Pvt Ltd Loan given 10,02,00,000
68 HFEPL i_E5528 Heney Flower Estates Private Limited Loan given 20,006,000
69 AREPL ]I E5017 Asteria Real Estates Private Limited Refund of Loan given 2,00,000
1,50,000

70 BOPPL 1_E5014

Bougainvillea Properties Private Limited

Refund of Loan given




20,000

71 CPPL {_E5505 Camelia Proparties Private Limfted Refund of Loan given

72 GPL |_ES507 Gerbera Properties Private Limited Refund of Loan given 3,80,000
73 PAPPL, [ _E5523 Padmapriva Properties Private Limited Refund of Loan given 68,70,000
74 HFEPL  |i_£5529 Honey Flower Estates Private Limited Refund of Loan given 20,00,000
75 APPL 1_ES501 Advika Properties Private Limited Investment in Debenture redeemed 6,32,00,000
78] AKPPL I_E5502 Aklima Froperties Private Limited investrent in Debenture redeemed 3,36,00,000
77|  AMPPL _ |I_ES503 Amartya Properties Private Limited Investment in Debenture redeemed 6,98,00,000
781 AREPL 1 E5017 Asteria Real Estates Private Limited Investment in Bebenture redesmed 3,52,00,000
79 BFPL {_E5504 Baruni Properties Private Limited Investment in Debenture redeemed 5,34,60,000
80 BOPPL |_£5014 B invillea Properties Private Limited Investment in Debenture red, d 4,01,00,000
81 CPPL 1_E5505 Camelia Properties Private Limited Ihvestment in Debenture redeemed 5,41,00,000
82 EPPL |_E5506 | Eila Properties Private Limited investment in Debenture redeamed 7,75,00,000
83 GPL |_ES507 Gerbera Properties Private Limited Investment in Debenture redeemed 6,12,00,000
84 HPPL I E5509 Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited Investment in Debenture redeemed 8,50,00,000
85 IPPL i_ES510 idika Properties Private Limited Investment in Debenture redeemed 5,66,00,000
86, LPPPL |_E5508 Lakshmi Priva Properties Private Linited Investment in Deberture redesmed 6,24,00,000
87 LPPL [_E5531 tilliam Properties Private Limited Investment n Debenture redeemed 2,91,00,000
88 PPPL i|_£55132 Prakalpa Properties Private Limited Investment in Debehture redeemed 5,68,00,000
g9 SPPL 1_E5515 Shreyadita Properties Private Limited Investment in Debenture redeemed 5,11,00,000
S0 PUPFL [ E5514 Purnachandra Propertles Private Limited Investment in Debenture redeemead 6,34,00,000
91 SRPPL I_E5516 Sreepa Properties Private Limited Investment in Debenture redeemed 4,53,00,000
92 SUPPL |_E5527 Suzane Properties Private Limited Investment in Debenture redeemed 5,48,00,000
93 LAPPL |_E5018 Larkspur Properties Private Limited Investment in Debenture redeemed 4,84,00,000
94 KPPL |_E5511 Krishnapriya Praperties Private Limited Investment in Debenture redeemed 5,74,00,000
95 NPPL 1_E5512 Madira Properties Private Limited investment in Debenture red, d 3,92,00,000
926 DPPL |_FS522 Deepesh Properties Private Limited Investment in Debenture redeemed 8,26,00,000
97 PRPPL  ]I_E5524 Pranesh Properties Private Limited Investrnent in Debenture redeemed 5,36,00,000
a8 RPPL |_ES525 Radhapriya Properties Private Limited Investment in Debentyre redeemead 15,78,00,000
99 LAN | ES526 Lantana Properties Private Limited Investment in Bebenture redeemed 10,02,80,000

00

For Girish Murthy & Kurmy

Chartered Accounta

em No. 85745

Place : Bangalore
- Date: 19-05-2020

3

High Point IV

45, Palace Road,

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited

Utkarsh Gupta
Company Secretary




